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INGEUS UK LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Principal activities

The Company (Ingeus UK Limited) is a limited company which is incorporated and domiciled in the UK.
The Group consists of the following entities: Ingeus UK Limited, The Reducing Reoffending Partnership
Limited, The Stafferdshire and West Midlands Community Rehabilitation Company Limited {(*SWM"),
The Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Nottinghamshire and Rutland Community Rehabilitation Company
Limited ("DLNR™}, ITL Training Limited and Invisage Limited, Ingeus Scotland Limited, and Ability Insight
Limited.

The principal activity of the Group is that of the provision of integrated programs and services for
Government which are focused on Human Services.

Review and results of operations

During the year the Group saw revenue increasing by 104.7% from the previous year to £95.8 million
{period ended 30 June 2019: £46.8 million). The Group made a loss in the year amounting to £13.0
million (period ended 30 June 2019: loss of £25.1 million). Net liabilities increased by 86.3% to £28.1
million during the year (30 June 2019: £15.1 million net liabilities). These are the key performance
indicators for the Company.

Business review

Ingeus UK operates across 4 key divisions: Employability, Health, Justice and Youth Services. Ingeus’
services help people to fulfil their potential. Be that through helping those at risk of Type 2 Diabetes to
gain the knowledge and skilis to live healthier lives; through National Citizen Service where young
people build their confidence and self-belief through new experiences and unique challenges; or Ingeus’
delivery of Probation Services through its Reducing Reoffending Partnership. Finally, through its

- employment services, Ingeus supports long-term unemployed people to find suitable, lasting

work. Ingeus is proud to have helped over 200,000 people on this journey since 2002.

Employability

Ingeus’ main employment programmes are delivering the Work and Health Programme (WHP} in the
North West, Greater Manchester and Central London. The WHP provides greater focus on individuals
out of work due to health-related issues. Ingeus also delivers the Steps to Success Programme in
Northern Ireland. Ingeus’ other prime contract is Access to Work Mental Health Suppert. Other smaller
employability contracts include twe WHP subcontracts in Central and NE England, Derbyshire IAPT
working with the NHS, ETE providing support to our RRP probation contract and also Health Care
Practitioner DWP prime contract.

Health

"Ingeus is a major provider of the NHS' National Diabetes Prevention Programme (*NDPP") with

contracts across England. This programme is focused on supporting patients at high risk of developing

=~ Type 2 Diabetes to- avoid developing the disease through structured education programmes. The
=~ programme has-been very successful with clinically significant weight loss and improvement in blood

test results showing a high proportion of individuals have moved out of at-risk groups. Ingeus leads an
innovative partnership with the Leicester Diahetes Centre and Changing Health (a digital health
provider) to deliver NDPP.

Youth Services

Ingeus is one of the largest providers of the Government's National Citizen Service (“NCS") with
contracts in the East Midlands, South East, Nerth East and West Midlands, providing social and
personal development programmes for young people, including team building activities and projects
that support their local communities.

Justice

The Reducing Reoffending Partnership ("RRP"} delivers Transforming Rehabilitation (*TR”) on behalf
of the Ministry of Justice ("MoJ”). This is a programme of reform for the management of low to medium
risk offenders in the community, the primary aim of which is to achieve a reduction in reoffending. RRP
utilises the expertise of its 1,000+ advisors to provide perscnalised support to offenders across
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Business Review {continued)

Justice (continued)

employment, health and social care, from as early as possible in sentencing, dedicated case managers
and a focus on employment, housing and welfare, in both prisons and the community. RRP is the fourth
largest operator by contract number, having secured two Community Rehabilitation Companies
("CRCs") in a highly competitive tendering process (Staffordshire and West Midlands and the
Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Nottinghamshire and Rutland). The partnership supports over 20,000
service users at any one time across these two areas.

In January 2020, two of the Group's subsidiaries, The Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Nottinghamshire and
Rutland Community Rehabilitation Company Limited ("DLNR™) and The Staffordshire and West
Midlands Community Rehabilitation Company Limited (*SWM”"), signed a variation with the MoJ which
amended the contract years by changing the termination date to 25 June 2021. The MoJ has opted to
extend the Agreements from 5 December 2020 to 25 June 2021 (the exit year). During the exit year, a
new commercial model will apply.

Directors duties

The Directors of the Company must act in accordance with a set of general duties. These duties are
~detailed in section 172 of the Companies Act 2006. The following paragraphs summarise how the T s T
Directors’ fulfil their duties. : T

Risk Management

The Directors identify, evaluate, manage, and mitigate the risks the Group faces and continue to
evolve their approach to risk management. For details of the principal risks and uncertainties and
how the Group manages its risk environment, refer below. ) i e

People -
The Directors are committed to be a responsible business. The behaviour is aligned with the _
.~ ~ - - expectations of the people, customers, shareholders, communities and society. For the Group to-- . oo
== = - succeed they need to manage their people’s performance and develop and bring through talent while I
ensuring the Group operates as efficiently as possible.

Business relationships

The Directors prioritise sustainable growth by continuing to provide exceptional service under its

current contracts and taking advantage of new opportunities that are presented. The Directors value : :
all the Group’s suppliers. - -

Community and environment

The Group’s approach is to create positive change for the people and communities with which the

Group interacts. The Directors want to leverage their expertise and enable colleagues to support the
communities around the Group. . -

Shareholders
i%rn, .i-;éﬁ ra-ames The-Directors are committed to openly engaging with the shareholders. It is important to the Dlrectors R LA e

: wese-xsi 7 =-that shareholders understand.the strategy and objectives of the Group, so these must be explained < - 7 eas sopeme
’ clearly, feedback heard, and any issues/questions raised properly considered. _

Principal risks and uncertainties
The management of the business and the Group's strategy is subject to several risks. Risks are
reviewed by the Directors and appropriate processes put in place to monitor and mitigate them.

The key business risks affecting the Group are set out below:

Economic conditions and government policy

The UK's membership of the European Union ("EU"} formally ended on 31 January 2020 and it
immediately entered into a transition period which ended on 31 December 2020. During this period,
the UK continued to follow all the EU's rules and its trading relationship remained the same.




INGEUS UK LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Economic conditions and government policy (continued)

Post 31 December 2020 there may be a period of economic uncertainty. However, management
believes the direct impact on the Group will be limited.

Furthermore, the current situation regarding the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve. While
downside scenarios relating to the length and severity of the COVID-19 outbreak are considered
plausible, it is difficult to predict the overall impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the economic
environment. However, all Government supported packages announced to date are positive from the
Group's perspective.

Relationships with government departments

The Group's primary customers are governmental departments and cother prime contractors to
government departments, both central and devolved. As with other entities with a high degree of
concentration in its customer base it is vital for the Group to maintain good relationships with these
customers to ensure the profitable renewa! of contracts where permissible. Governmental departments
can be subject to political influences and their policies and priorities can change, sometimes at short
notice. This c¢an materially affect the nature and quantum of services commissioned. When contracts
are varied by the customer, while the Group does all it can to protect its contractual rights, the Group’s
options can be constrained due to the position of the customer.

Credit risks

The Group’s principal financial assets relate to amounts owed by other Group companies as well as
trade debtors and accrued income. The amounts presented in the Statement of Financial Position are
net of allowances for doubtful debts.

Credit risk is low as debtors are generally government departments or government agencies.

Liquidity : :
- - ‘The ‘Group’s policy has been to ensure continuity of funding through the effective operation and
performance of the treasury function.

Employees
The Group’'s performance depends largely on the quality and commitment of its staff and its ability to
attract and retain the best talent.

The Group policy is to actively provide equal opportunities for employment and recruits and promotes
employees on the basis of their qualifications, skills, values and aptitude. The Group keeps employees
informed about the latest news, activities and best practices through the Group intranet.

; = ¥m - The Groupencouiages-the involvéement of employees in the Grodp's performance through an employee

reward scheme, and also achieves a common awareness of all employees in relation to the financial
and economic factors that affect the performance of the Group.

=7 . >« - =n-relation to disabilities; it-seeks to employ the most talented pedp!e and thus has procedures in -

place to ensure that individuals with disabilities are supperted in reaching their full potential by making
reasonable adjustments for them in the workplace.

Sub-contractors and payment of creditors

The business uses multiple sub-contractors to assist in its provision of its programmes. The Group’s
performance is dependent on the results of these sub-contractors, which are actively managed by the
relevant business divisions.

Group Policy for all suppliers is to fix terms of payment when agreeing the terms of each business
transaction, to ensure the supplier is aware of those terms, and to ensure all abide by the agreed terms
of payment.

i




INGEUS UK LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

KPls

Comprehensive KPls are used within the business to manage the performance of the whole business,
management and staff. The key financial KPIs relate to revenue and net assets. The non-financial KPIs
relate to operational performance indicators such as referral to programmes, attachments, and key
programme outcomes such as employment commencement or achievement of qualifications.

Financial risk management

Capital management

The objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong credit ratings and
capital ratios. This will ensure that the business is correctly supported and shareholder value is
maximised. The Group manages its capital structure through adjustments that are dependent on
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may choose to issue
new share capital to shareholders.

Inferest rate risk
The Group finances its operations through retained profits and advances from other group undertakings
as necessary. The Group has limited risk to interest rate fiuctuations.

Liquidity risk

Management monitors the Group's liquidity and projected cash flows. The Group's liquidity
management policy involves projecting cash flows in Pounds Sterling and considering the level of liquid
assets necessary to meet these and monitoring the Statement of Financial Position's liquidity ratios.

Employee engagement statement
The directors are executive directors and engage with the employees of the Group through monthly

- review of operating results and day to day operations. Each financial year, the employees are invited

R < ot B, e i

Ter - TRe g e ;—--;I"_:*“""

to participate in the global engagement survey and the results of the survey are communicated to the
board and discussed with senior management. During the year the directors have taken steps to:
- Provide employees with information on matters of concern to them as employees;

- Consult employees or their representatives on a regular basis so that the views of employees -

can be considered in making decisions which are likely to affect their interests; and
- Achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic
factors affecting the performance of the Group.

Cur policies and procedures fully support our disabled colleagues. We take active measures to do so
via a robust reasonable adjustment policy; disability-specific online resources; and processes to ensure
colleagues are fully supported. The Group is responsive to the needs of its employees. As such, should
any employee of the Group become disabled during their time with us, we will actively retrain that
employee and make reasonable adjustments to their working environment where possible, in order to
keep the employee with the Group. It is the policy of the Group that the recruitment, training, career

‘development and:promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other - ..~

employees.

Environment
During the-year covered by -this report the Group has not incurred any fines or penalties or has been
investigated for any breach of environmental regulations.

Equal opportunities
The Group published its data in April 2018 in relation to the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap
Information) Regulations 2017.

This report showed that the Group’s median gender pay gap of 8% is much lower than the national
average of 17.3%. The Group continues to focus on building the right environment and support for
women to have successful careers at Ingeus, particularly at senior levels.




INGEUS UK LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Future developments
The Group continues to seek and present investment proposals, that if implemented could lead to
growth of shareholder wealth.

On behalf of the board

GH'Mey .
Director
9 April 2021
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 12.

Ingeus UK Limited did not declare or pay any dividends in the year (30 June 2018: Nil).

Directors
The following directors held office during the year ended 3¢ June 2020 and up to the signing of these
financial statements, unless otherwise stated:

GH Meyerowitz
J Sawyer
F Woodbridge (appointed 11 August 2020)

Future developments
The Group continues to seek and present investment proposals, that if implemented could lead to
growth of shareholder wealth,

- The Directors are conscious when writing this report and preparing the financial statements of the

significant impact the COVID-1% is having on the world economy. The Directors do not expect
COVID-18 to have a significant impact on the Group.

Financial risk management
Refer to the strategic report.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, notwithstanding the loss in
the year of £13.0 million (2019: £25.1 million), net current liabilities of £27.4 million (2019: £16.7

. million) and net liabilities of £28.1 million (2019: £15.1 million), for the reasons set out below.

The Company and the Group are reliant on funds provided to them by their ultimate Parent Company,
APM Human Services International Pty Ltd ("APMHSI") which has indicated that it will continue to
provide financial and other support to the extent necessary to enable the Group to continue to trade
and meet its financial obligations for the foreseeable future and for at least twelve months from the date
of signature of the audit report for the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020.

In assessing the ability of APMHSI to provide this ongoing financial support, the future impact on
APMHS! of the recent COVID-19 outbreak has also been considered. The directors of APMHSI have
performed sensitivity analyses on their Board approved forecasts to assess the potential impact of
different scenarios. Based on various sensitivity analyses over the going concern assessment year of

.. __the potential impact of the COVID-18 in terms of revenue and the positive global government supported
= -packages Televant to APMHSI s businesses that have been announced, APMHSI would remain cash -

generative such that it will have the financial capacity to support the Company and the Group so that
they can meet their liabilities as and when they fall due for payment.

-.-Si_nce.',the‘balance‘-d'ate -and the date of approval of these financial statements, Serendipity (WA) Pty

Limited has advanced £7.7 million to Ingeus Europe Limited. Ingeus Europe Limited has passed on
this funding to the Company and the Group.

After due consideration of the matters set out above, the directors believe that it remains appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditor
In so far as each of the directors holding office at the date of this report is aware:

s there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s and Group’s auditors are unaware:
and

» the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.




INGEUS UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that pericd. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

Events after the reporting date

On 1 March 2021, the Company issued 5,691,129 ordinary shares of £1 each in settlement of debts
totalling £5,691,129 owing to its immediate parent entity Ingeus Europe Limited.

In addition, on 1 March 2021, Ingeus Europe Limited subscribed for 29,000,000 ordinary shares of £1
each in the Company for a total of £29,000,000.

On the assumption that the above transactions had occurred on 30 June 2020, the impact on the
Group's and the Company’'s Statement of Financial Position would have been as follows:

30 June 2020 Subsequent event Proforma balance
balance £000 2000 .
o : £000 - ) C- : ) .
| Consolidated
{Net liabilities)/net assets {28,098) 34,691 6,593
_ Shareholders’ {(deficityequity (28,008) 34,691 6,593
Company - -
(Net liabilities)/net assets (21,299) 34,691 13,392
Shareholders’ (deficity/equity (21,299) 34,691 13,392

From a Group and Company perspective the net liabilities would have reduced from £28,098 million
and £21,299 million respectively to a net asset position of £6,593 million and £13,392 million,
respectively.

In addition, subsequent to year end, the Group acquired 100% of CNLR Horizons Limited whose
principal activity is to provide employee assistance programme services.

Directors’ indemnities

The Directors have the benefit of a qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined by Section
234 of the Companies Act 2006 which was in force throughout the last financial year and is currently
in force.




INGEUS UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

independent auditors

Under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2008, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be deemed to
have been reappointed as auditors after these financial statements were sent to members, or after the
latest date prescribed for filing the financial statements with the registrar, whichever is earlier.

On behalf of the board

GHeyrow1tz
Director
9 April 2021




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Ingeus UK Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Ingeus UK Limited’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial
statements™): ‘

e givea true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 30 June 2020 and
of the group’s loss and the group’s and the company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards the company’s financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

»  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial
Statements (the “Annual Report™), which comprise: the Consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 30 June 2020; the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated and
company statements of cash flows, and the Consolidated and company statements of changes in equity for the
year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant
accouniing policies,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
-applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in'accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:

¢ thedirectors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

» the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the group’s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
2w m'.. - - group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

R N ST e -

Reporting on other information

==.. ~ - The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements

. -and our auditors”report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the -

. ===+ ~~financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion
or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether
there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required
by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK)
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below,

10




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Ingeus UK Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statemnents in accordance with the applicable
framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, the directors are responsibie for assessing the group’s and the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, aceept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
¢ . Under.the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:- - : L i
"« wehave niot received all the information and expla nations we require for our audi‘t_; or ’ )

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or _ . S

" -certain disclosires of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
s  the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

[t lfeite—

Matthew Walker (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Birmingham

13 April 2021
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Net impairment losses on financial and contract
assets

Other income

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Loss before taxation )
Income tax expense
Loss for the year/period

Other comprehensive (expense)/income, net of
tax

ltemns that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of pensicn liability |
Re-measurement of pension asset and
reimbursement asset

Total comprehensive loss net of tax for the
year/period

_ (Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: _
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest _ )

. e
- L e e e - DT
I =R

Note

20
20

Year Six months
ended ended
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£'000 £000
95,815 46,811
(72,776) (32,262)
23,039 14,549
(24,577) (26,562)
(11,227) (11,290)
336 -
(12,429) (23,303)
24 12
611) (436)
(13,016) (23,727)
- {(1,415)
(13,016) (25,142)
(19,259) (18,251)
18,259 18,251
(13,016) (25,142)
(12,915) (25,164)
(101) 22
"~ (13,016)

"(25,142)

The notes on pages 19 to 55 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
As at 30 Jun 2020 As at 30 Jun 2019

Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangibte assets 10 138 368
Property, plant and equipment 11 8,030 13,068
Pension re-imbursement asset 20 88,349 63,249
Other receivables 13 108 595
Total non-current assets 94 623 77,280
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 23,566 27,298
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,497 3,446
Corporation tax - -
Total current assets 25,063 30,744
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables ) 17 47.744 41,571
Lease liability 19 3,194 3,312
Provisions ‘ 21 1,526 2,571
Total current liabilities o 52,464 47 454
Net current liabilities ] - (27,401) (16,.710)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables o 18 3,083 3,543
Lease liability S - 19 . - 3,384 - -~ - - B036
Provisions ‘ 21 2,524 2,824
Pension liability R 20 86,349 63,249
Teotal non-current liabilities . 95,320 75,652
NET LIABILITIES ‘ (28,098) (15,082)
SHAREKOLDER’S EQUITY
Share capital 22 - -
Reserves ) 26 3,735 5,114
Accumulated losses (31,833) (18,918)
Equ1ty attributable to owners of the parent ) - (28,098) - - (13,804) i
Non-controlling interest ST SR R - (1,278) ~ -~
TOTAL DEFICIT , C o thes __— (28, 098[ o (15, 082)

- The financial statements on pages 12 to 55 were approved by the board of dlrectors ong Apnl 2021 and
sighed on its behalf by:

GH Meyetowitz
Director
The notes on pages 19 to 55 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Company registration number: 4320853
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

TOTAL DEFICIT

The financial statementé on pages 12 to 55 were approved by the board of directors on 9 April 2021

and signed on its behalf by:

GHMeyerowuz
Director

- -

(21,299)

AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
As at 30 Jun 2020 As at 30 Jun 2019
Note £°000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 10 - 28
Property, plant and equipment 11 3,768 5,429
Other receivables 13 - 594
Investments 14 - -
Total non-current assets 3,768 6,051
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 17,181 21,266
Cash and cash equivalents 16 401 1,094
Total current assets 17,682 22,360
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables o 17 37,346 29,929
Lease liability ? 19 1,610 1,846
Provisions 21 1,222 2,156
Total current liabilities 40,178 33,931
Net current liabilities N (22,596) (11,571)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables ‘ 18 - 129
Lease liability oo 19 2,045 3,110
_Provisions_ e 21 426 1,115 )
Total non-current liabilities - 2,471 ' 4,354 -
NET LIABILITIES (21,299) (9.874)
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital : 22 - -
Reserves o 26 5,114 5114
Accumulated losses ; (26,413) (14,988)
{9,874)

S w - - LT A e T o~
. A P50 3 N © e BT -

The notes on pages 19 to 55 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Company registration number: 4320853




INGEUS UK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Balance at 1 July 2019

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss
Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Acquisition of minority interest
in a controlled entity

Balance at 30 June 2020

Balance at 1 January 2019
restated
Loss for the period

_Total comprehensive loss

. Balance at 30 June-2019

Non-
Share Accumulated controlling Total
capital Reserves losses Total interest deficit
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
- 5,114 {18,918) (13,804) (1,278} (15,082)
- - {(12,815) (12,915) {101) (13,.016)
- - (12,915) (12,915) {101) (13,016)
- (1,379) - {(1,379) 1,379 -
- 3,735 {31,833) (28,098) - (28,098)
Retained )
profits/ Non- Total
Share {Accumulated controiling (deficit)/
capital Reserves losses) Total interest equity
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- 5,114 6,246 11,360 {1,300) 10,060
- j - {25,164) (25,164) 22 {25,142)
- - {25,164) (25,164) 22 {25,142)
o - C. 05,114 (18,918) {13,804) ' (1,278) . (15,082) -

The notes on pages 19 to 55 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

15




INGEUS UK LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Share Reserves Accumulated
capital losses Total deficit
£'000 £:000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 July 2019 - 5,114 (14,988) (9,874)
Loss for the year - - (11,425) {11,425}
Total comprehensive loss .- - (11,425) {11,425)
Balance at 30 June 2020 - 5,114 {26,413) (21,299)
Retained
_ : Share profits/
T capital Reserves {accumulated Total
losses) equity/(deficit)
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2019 - 5,114 5,469
_restated o 10,583
Loss for the period : - - (20,457) (20,457)
~ Total comprehensive loss _ ) - - (20,457) (20,457}
* Balance at 30 June 2019 - 5,114 {14,988) ~(9,874)

- The notes on pages 19 to 55 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

o aTE s
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year/period
Income tax (credit)/expense

Depreciation
Amortisation

impairment of intercornpany receivables
Impairment of property, plant & equipment
Finance income

Finance cost

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease)fincrease in provisions,
Cash generated from operations

Tax received

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

- Purchase of intangible assets
Finance income .
Net cash utilised by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

1

Loans provided to group undertakings

Lean repayments from group undertakings
Loan repayments to group undertakings
Payment of principal on lease liabilities
Payment of interest on lease liabilities

7" Nét cash ufilised by financing activiies

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the heginning of the

year/period

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

The notes on pages 19 to 55 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Note

Il

Year Six months
ended ended
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£'000 £'000
(13,016) (25,142)
- 1,415
5,852 3,667
253 253
11,296 11,222
- 538
(24) (12)
611 436
146 241
23 -
9,901 4253
5,693 16,190
(1,431) 1,939
19,304 15,000
19,304 15,000
(563) (698)
(46) (195)
24 12
{585) (881)
{23,034) -
6,058
(14,290)
(3,167) (1,640)
(525) (330)
(20,668) (16,260)
(1,949) {2,141)
3,446 5,587
1,497 3,446
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year/period

Income tax expense

Depreciation

Amortisation

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of intercompany balances

Net finance expense/(income)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
(Decrease)/increase in provisions

Cash generated from operations -

Tax received
Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equment
Finance income

Net cash utilised by investing activities
Cash flows generated from financing activities

Loans provided by group undertakings
Loans repayments to group undertakings
Loans provided to group undertakings -
Loan repayments by group undertakings
Payment of principal on lease liabilities
Payment of interest on Iease Iiabiiities

Net decrease in cash and cash equwalents

Cash and cash equwalents at the beglnmng of the
year/period - - . . ;

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

The notes on pages 19 to 55 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Note

L

Year Six months
ended ended
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£'000 £000
{11,425) (20,457)
- 1,444

2,262 1,277
18 20

- 538

8,601 8,511
386 {9)

128 65

10 .
11,516 (1,159)
8,416 11,088
(1,641) 2,100
18,271 1,418
18,271 1,418
{332) (587)

17 . 9

{315) - (578)
18,881 4,050
{(20,086) (7,754)
(21,495) -
6,058 -
(1,701} {725)
{306) {193)

.. {18,649) . {4,622)
{693) (3,782)
1,094 - .- . 4,876
401 1,094

18




INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ingeus UK Limited (the “Company”) is a private company limited by shares which is incorporated
and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The principal activity of the Group is that of the provision of
integrated programs and services for Government which are focused on Human Services.

The address of its registered office is: 5th Floor, 18 Mansell Street, London, England, E1 8AA.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the year/pericd presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ("Adopted
IFRSs"} and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC") and the
Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies using IFRS. The principal accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have

- been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial

statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on a going concern basis.

Rounding of amounts
The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand, expect where otherwise stated.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, notwithstanding the
loss in the year of £13.0 million {2019: £25.1 million), net current liabilities of £27.4 million (2019:
£18.7 million) and net liabilities of £28.1 million (2019: £15.1 million), for the reasons set out
below.

The Company and the Group are reliant on funds provided to them by their ultimate Parent
Company, APM Human Services International Pty Ltd (*APMHSI”) which has indicated that it will
continue to provide financial and other support to the extent necessary to enable the Group to
continue to trade and meet its financial obligations for the foreseeable future and for at least twelve
months from the date of signature of the audit report for the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2020. - - S -

ih assessing the ability of APMHSI to provide this ongoing financial support, the future impact on

APMHSI of the recent COVID-19 outbreak has afso been considered. The directors of APMHSI

x5 -have-performed sensitivity analyses on their Board approved forecasts to assess the potential .
~.impact of different-scenarios, Based on various sensitivity analyses over the going concern

assessment year of the potential impact of the COVID-19 in terms of revenue and the positive
global government supported packages relevant to APMHSI's businesses that have been
announced, APMHSI would remain cash generative such that it will have the financiai capacity to
support the Company and the Group so that they can meet their liabilities as and when they fall
due for payment.

Since the balance date and the date of approval of these financial statements, Serendipity (WA)
Pty Limited has advanced £7.7 million to Ingeus Europe Limited. Ingeus Europe Limited has
passed on this funding to the Company and the Group.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}
Significant accounting policies {continued)
Going concern (continued)
After due consideration of the matters set out above, the directors believe that it remains
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed.

New standards, amendments, and IFRIC interpretations

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are no amendments to accounting standards, or IFRIC interpretations, that are effective
for the year ended 30 June 2020 that have had a material impact on the Group's financial
statements. The Group has also not opted to early adopt new accounting standards that are not
effective.

New sfandards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory
- for 30 June 2020 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group: amendments

to IAS 1 and IAS 8 in respect of the definition of material — effective for periods beginning on after

1 January 2020, These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
- current or future reporting periods an on foreseeable future transactions.

Revenue recognition
. Revenue represents income from employment services, youth services, health services, and
- "o . - probation and rehabilitation services, net of value added tax and trade discounts. et

Employment services

While the specific terms vary by contract, the Group often receives four types of revenue streams
under contracts with government entities: referral/attachment fees, job placement/job cutcome
fees, sustainment fees and incentive fees (collectively, “outcome fees™).

. Most of the Group’s contracts include a single promise to stand ready to deliver pre-defined

R services. The Group concluded its performance cbligations comprise a series of distinct monthly

services that are substantially the same and which are transferred to the customer in the same

manner. Accordingly, the monthly promise to stand ready is accounted for as a single performance

. -mez -sn.-=s- - obligation. Substantially all the Group's contracts include variable consideration, whereby it earns C e e
-r=enoc onezio-f . revenues if certain contractually-defined outcomes occur in the future,

As the related performance obligations are satisfied, the Group recognizes revenue for those
=% T woutcomes in-proportion-to the amount of the related fees it estimates have been earned. The . -
-2 camount-of revenue-is based upon the Group's estimate of the final amount of outcome fees to be

- earned. The Group evaluates probability generally using the expected value method because the

likelihood it will be entitled to variable fees is binary in nature. These estimates consider i)

contractual rates, i) assumed success rates and iit) assumed participant life in program. Generally,

each of these estimates is based upon historical results, although for new contracts, other factors
may be considered.

At each reporting year, the Group updates its estimate of variable consideration based on actual
results or other relevant information and records an adjustment to revenue based upon services
performed to date.

For some of the Group’s contracts, it recognises revenue as it invoices customers because the
amount to which it is entitled to invoice approximates the fair value of the services transferred.

20




INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group constrains its estimates of variable consideration by reducing those estimates to
amounts it believes with enough confidence will not later result in a significant reversal of revenue.
When determining if variable consideration should be constrained, management considers
whether there are factors outside the Group’s control that could result in a significant reversal of
revenue. In making these assessments, the Group considers the likefihood and magnitude of a
potential reversal of revenue.

Probation services

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. The directors
have made estimates regarding revenue and certain other provisions based on their knowledge
and estimates of the changde in contract base that has occurred within the business during the year.

o Revenue generated under the Transforming Rehabilitation contract with the Mod is invoiced and
L .~ recognised on a monthly basis. The initial recognition is on the basis of projected volumes agreed
with the MoJ. The volumes are monitored on an ongoing basis throughout the life of the contract
and revenue is adjusted accordingly based on management's view of the likelihood of any

clawback or service credits likely to be retrospectively applied.

Youth Services
Sign-up payments are recognised in line with delivery. The core payment and turn-up payment
- and the recruitment incentive, social mix and other bonuses or potentiat clawbacks, revenue
- S e - streams deferred and recognised over the delivery of the NCS season. Forthe cost element, those . .
- 2w . -0 relating to-future courses are deferred and recognised over the duration of the course, e S

Health

The key revenue stream is the Core Price, where the estimated revenue from each performance
milestone is straight-lined over the course year. This involves estimating the conversion rate for
each mitestone and determining an appropriate course year over which to recognise the revenue.
The course year was estimated at 10 months, by which point over 80% of the milestone payments
have been achieved.

Property plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historic purchase cost less accumulated depreciation
oy o T e = and any impairment. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to wnte off the cost on a straight-- - T el
R line basis over its expected useful economic life. : . .- -

- o The estimated useful economic life of a leasehold |mprovement asset is determmed by the Iength
=lmenn amoagesr of the property lease for that site, provided it does not exceed oo - . LT

- R Tt T el

1. the length of the underlymg revenue contract for that S|te
2. orthe asset's economic useful life.

The annual depreciation rates applicable are as follows:

Land and buildings - leasehold improvements 2 — 5 years

Office equipment and fittings 3 years
Computer equipment 3—~5years
Motor vehicles ‘ 5-7 years
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of assets
At each reporting year end, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to
assess whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an indicator of
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the
impairment loss. Recoverable amount being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (*CGU") to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
allocated to individual CGUSs, or otherwise allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The key assumptions across the CGUs for the value in use calculations are those regarding profit

forecasts, strategic benefits, risk factors and discount rates. The strategic benefits are based on

. new contract wins. Management has estimated the risk rate based on potential contract renewal

= . ..~ and the discount rate reflects the Group’s current market assessments of the time value of money.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition is presented within intangible assets. Goodwill is measured at fair
value less accumulated impairment losses and is reviewed annually for impairment.

Software
Externally purchased computer software licences and similar intangible items are capitalised at
historical cost and amortised on a straight-line basis.

Internally developed software projects are capitalised at historical cost when there is technical
feasibility of completing, intention to complete, ability to use, generation of probable future
“economic benefits, availability of technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development of the software and it is possible to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to
the asset.

Licences

Licences acquired on acquisition are initially recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They
are subsequently reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. They are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of three years from the start of

. the relevant contract year. . e e - .- P T

Contracls
Contracts acquired on acquisition are initially recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They

s T

relevant contract year.

Amortisation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of
each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful economic life, as follows:

Computer software 3-5 years

s S are subsequently reported‘at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. They are- g
sz o w5 - amortised on-a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of five years from the start of the
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCJAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2,  ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Leases
At inception of a contract the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, alease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a year of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset, this may be specified explicitly or implicitly
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right then the asset is not
identified;
The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use cof the
asset throughout the year of use; and
The Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has
the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the
asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is
used is predetermined, the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

a. The Group has the right to use the asset; or

b. The Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what

purpose it will be used.

- Atinception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.

- «The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any ~

initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset

or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives

received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end

- of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by 1mpa|rment Iosses if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

el '*“,~The lease liability-is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not pald .

at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate

.. . _..cannot be readily determined, the Group's increment borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses
T=. v sdts-incremental borrowing rate. as the dlscount rate.” The mcremental borrowmg Tate apphed is

6.55% {2019: 6.55%).

lLease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

Fixed payments including in-substance fixed payments;

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reascnably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an option renewal year if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

Repayments of lease liabilities are separated into a principal portion and interest portion which are
both presented within financing activities in the cash flow statement.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It is
remeasured where there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes it assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assels
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, including IT eguipment.

The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Receivables
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected less allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

wxmme e e e W] O MEasure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared .

-~ - . creditrisk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the historical
payment profiles of sales and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within the
year/period.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within ‘Administrative
expenses’. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account

- for trade receivables.- Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
‘Administrative expenses' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets

el o

s 2 :;*_ waknsd eal ThezGroup.classifies: all-its: financial assets ‘at amortised cost. The Group classmes |ts fmancnal

v T+ " asséts as at amortised cost only when the business model of the Group is to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are so!ely payments of pnnclpal
and interest. : -

Atinitial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value. Assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the time value of money is
significant. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assets are derecognised,
modified or impaired. Financial assets measured at amortised cost include trade receivables, loans
and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed,
less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions
Provisions are recognised as a liability when a present obligation exists in respect of a past event
and where the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are discounted where the time value
of money is considered material.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term deposits. Short
term deposits are defined as deposits with an initial maturity of three months or less.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the
rates of exchange ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date. Transactions in foreign
currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. All differences are taken to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred income tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance date.

Deferred tax
. Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
--the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. . .
‘However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or -
liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting, nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised, or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax is not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit wil!

be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Employee benefits o o

Pension costs -

The amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income represents the contrlbutlons
“+ = payable by the Group to the defined contribution pension scheme,

Defined contribution pension scheme

The Group operated defined contribution plans for its employees. The Group pays a fixed
contribution into a separate entity after which it has no further payment obligation. These
contributions are recognised as an expense when they fall due. Amounts not paid are accrued in
the Statement of Financial Position until such time when payment is made. The assets of these
plans are held separately from the Group's assets within an independently administered fund.

Defined benefit scheme — Local Government Pension Scheme

Employees who transferred to SWM from the Staffordshire and West Midlands Probation Trust and
to DLNR from the Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Nottinghamshire and Rutiand Probation Trust were
at the time enrolled in the Local Government Pension Scheme (“LGPS”) and were covered by the
Staff Transfer Scheme ("STS").
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2,

ACCQUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued}

The STS was incorporated into the contracts between SWM and DLNR (the “CRCs") and the MoJ
for staff transferring from the National Probation Service into the CRCs or transferring from other
eligible community rehabilitation companies and are entitled to be enrolled under the LGPS. This
scheme has been closed to new employees since February 2016. The Group's share of the plan
assets calculated at each triennial valuation of the Fund. Thereafter it is rolled forward to the
accounting date using suitable estimates of the investment returns, contributions and benefits paid.
The Group's contributions to the Fund are allocated entirely to the Group's asset share.

Eligible employees are covered by the provisions of the LGPS which is a funded defined-benefit
scheme. Retirement benefits are determined independently of the investments of the scheme and
employers are obliged to make additional contributions where the assets are insufficient to meet
the retirement benefit. This pension scheme is subject to an independent triennial actuarial
valuation to determine each employer's contributions rate. The |ast triennial review was conducted
as at 31 March 2019. From 1st June 2014, SWM and DLNR became a member of the Greater
Manchester Pension Fund ("GMPF"). The assets and liabilities relating to the former Probation

- Trust staff who transferred to the Group were transferred from their respective LGPS to the GMPF.

The responsibility for funding the past service liabilities and all future pension contributions for the

"~ - employees who were active members of the LGPS, transferred with the employee to the new

e BT e
- de

:"*‘F-"rre.e

B A

employers, namely the CRCs. The MoJ ensures that past service liabilities are 100% funded on an
ongoeing basis from the date employees transferred to the CRCs.

On this basis, the scheme has been accounted for as a defined benefit scheme and a liability in
respect of any pension deficit has been recognised on the Statement of Financial Position. A
corresponding pension reimbursement asset due from the MoJ has also been recognised.
.Movement-in. the defined benefit pension scheme liability and the reimbursement asset are
recognised in the appropriate caption in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income.

Grant income
Grant income comprises the furlough scheme payments received and have been recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income as other income,

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

- The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of estimates and judgements that

affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Although these

-estimates .and judgements.are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, events or

<s3ctions, ~'ltlmaltely actual -results may differ from those estimates. The key estimates and
Judgements used in these financial statements are set out below.

Revenue recognition o :
.*Revenue-is recogmsed ‘when the amount of revenue can be reliably rneasured it is probable that

-~ future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group’s activities. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. The directors have
made estimates regarding revenue and certain other provisions based on their knowledge and
estimates of the change in contract base that has occurred within the business during the year.

Where revenue from specific contracts is subject to clawback amounts by respective contracting
bodies, a separate provision is accrued for.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements {continued)

Impairment excluding deferred lax assels

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are fargely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its o
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of

-Comprehensive Income. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated to reduce

the carrying amounts of the assets in the unit {group of units) on a pro rata basis. T

- Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications ’

that the loss has decreased or no fonger exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a

change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed .o
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would -
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been T

- recognised. . S mael &
Employee benefits

IAS 19, Employee Benefits, requires that certain assumptions are made in order to determine the
amount to be recorded for retirement benefit obligations and pension plan assets, in particular for
defined benefit plans. These are mainly actuarial assumptions such as expected future salary
increases, long-term increase in health care costs, average life expectancy and discount rates.
Substantial .changes in the assumed development of any of these variables may significantly
change the Group's retirement benefit obligation and pension assets (see note 20}, although this is
offset by a pension reimbursement asset and therefore has no net impact on the Group's results.

Provisions: LT T

et -_" wrsiE Iac s ~Provisions-are: recognised when the Group has a present Iegal or construchve obllgatlon asa result' L Tamem

of past events; it'is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliability. Management has made judgements

on certain assumptions used to estimate the provisions. S ]
. - - . - A LA

Leases: :

The accounting for leases under IFRS 16 involves making various judgements and estimates with

the most signification being the assumptions management have made around determining the

incremental borrowing rate (see Note 2).
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

J. REVENUE

The total revenue of the Group for the year and prior period has been derived from its principal
activity wholly undertaken in the United Kingdom.

Year Six months

ended ended

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019

£000 £000

Employment services 23,165 13,900
Probation 48,835 27,558
Youth services 16,159 1,785
Health 7,647 3,556
Other g 12
. 95,815 46,811

Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts
with customers.

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019 1 Jan 2019
£000 £'000 _ £'000
Trade receivables from customers 1,570 3,329 2,365
(see note 15)
Contract assets (accrued income) 6,425 12,938 8,992
(see notes 13 and 15)
Contract liabilities . 27,510 24,251 11,583

(see notes 17 and 18)

Contract assets represent revenue recognised but not yet invoiced. All contract assets as at 30
June 2019 were invoiced during the year ended 30 June 2020. £6,319,000 of contract assets as
at 30 June 2020 are expected to be invoiced within the following twelve months.

Coentract liabilities represent the Group's ebligation to transfer goods or services to customers, for
=~ -which the .Group has already.received consideration from the customer. £24,447,000 of goods and
" -gervices are expected to'be provided within the following twelve months (2019: £21,524,000). '

4. OTHER INCOME _ - . i

e T Year " Six months
SRR - - ended ended
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£000 £'000
Income from group undertakings 155 -
Grant income 181 -
Total 336 -

Income from group undertakings arises from intergroup recharges.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

5. OPERATING LOSS

Operating loss is stated after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets

Room hire

Management charges

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets*
Auditors’ remuneration — audit

Auditors’ remuneration — non-audit services

Year

ended

30 Jun 2020
£000

263
2,439
3413

146

23
1,082
1,703

11,227
201

Six months
ended

30 Jun 2019
£°000

253
1,881
1,786

241

534
694
538
11,290
170
95

*Of the above impairment losses, a reversal of £69,000 (charge of 2019: £68,000) relate to

receivables arising from contracts with customers. A charge of £11,296,000 (2019: £11,222,000)

relates to an impairment of the amount owed by group undertakings.

Loss of the parent company:

-As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, the income statement of the parent

company is not presented as part of these financial statements. The parent company’s loss after
income tax for the financial year/period was £11,400,000 (2019: £20,500,000).

6. FINANCE INCOME

Bank interest

7. FINANCE COSTS
I T T woma
. RIS -t

D T T - e

Interest on group undertaking loans
Interest expense on lease liability
Provisions: unwinding of discount

Year Six months

ended ended

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£'000 £'000

24 12

24 12

- w+te 2o Year- «_ - Six months -
= . ended- ended - - -

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£'000 -£'000 -

- 106

525 330

86 -

611 436
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

8. INCOME TAX

Year Six months
ended ended
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£'000 £'000
Current year/period tax
UK corporation tax -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - 41
Current tax charge - 41
Deferred tax
Deferred tax charge - 1,271
Adjustments in respect of prior pericds - 236
Effect of changes in tax rate - {133)
Deferred tax charge - 1,374
Income tax ‘ - 1,415

The income tax is higher (2019: higher) than the standard rate of tax at 19.00% (2019: 19.00%).
The differences are explained below:

Year Six months
ended ended
- : 30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
Factors affecting the income tax for the year/period £'000 £'000
Loss before taxation . {13,016) {23,727}
Loss before taxation multiplied by standard corporation tax
at 19.00% (2019: 19.00%) ; (2,473) {4,508)
Effects of;
Non-deductible expenses . 2,368 2,321
Non-taxable incorne - -
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - 41
Adjustments for deferred tax of prior periods - 238
Effect of changes in the tax rate - (134)
Amounts not recognised for deferred tax purposes PO 67 - 3,354 .-
-Non-qualifying depreciation =« ) o el 44
Losses (116) 61
Utilisation of unrecogmsed brought forward losses 154 -
' '_h_lnc_c_:me tax - z Co- . 1,415

5 '1«

On 17 March 2020, UK Budget resclutions were passed setting the UK corporation tax rate at 19%
from 1 April 2020, reversing the 17% rate enacted in Finance Act 2016. To the extent that deferred
tax assets / {liabilities) have been recognised, these have been calculated based on the rate of
19% substantively enacted at balance date.

In the Spring Budget 2021, the Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax
rate will increase to 25%. Since the proposal to increase the main corporation tax rate to 25% had
not been substantively enacted at the balance date, its effects are not included in these financial
statements.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

9. EMPLOYEES

Group

Number of employees

The average monthly number of employees during the year/period was:

Management
Operational and administration

Employment costs {including directors):
Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Restructuring

Pension contribution (defined contrlbutlons)
Pensicn contributions (note 20)

Pension restructuring cost (note 20)
Pension early retirement cost (note 20)

Company

Number of employees

The average monthly number of employees during the year was:

Management
Operational and admln:stratlon

Employment costs {including directors):
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension contribution {defined contributions)

Year Six months

ended ended

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019

Number Number

21 26

1,697 1,812

1,718 1,838

Year Six months

ended ended

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019

£°000 £'000

45,133 26,807

4,081 2,325

449 -

813 458

2,341 1,206

163 354

29 24

53,009 31,174

Year Six months
“ended 7 .ended :
~'30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
Number Number

2 4

710 - 792

712 796

Year Six months

ended ended

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019

£000 £'000

19,610 12,519

1,735 1,044

589 334

21,934 13,897
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Group
Computer
software
Goodwill Licences Contracts licences Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 July 2019 2,316 280 1,380 5,025 9,001
Additions - - - 46 46
Disposals - - - {4,411} (4.411)
At 30 June 2020 2,316 280 1,380 660 4636
Accumulated
amortisation
At 1 July 2019 . 2,316 280 1,380 4,657 8,633
Charge for the year .- - - 253 253
Disposals ST - - {4,388) {4,388)
At 30 June 2020 2,316 280 1,380 522 4,498
‘Net book value
At 30 June 2020 - - - 138 138
Computer
software
Goodwill Licences Contracts licences Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost . oo - . . ‘ .
Co -ZA January 2019° ¢ --::2:316 . 280 - 1,380 4,924 - 8800
Additions - - - 195 195
__ Disposals___ - - - (94) (94)
. LAL30 June 2019 - . 72318 280 1,380 5025 . 9,001 -
Accumulated
amortisation
At 1 January 2019 2,316 258 1,380 4,520 8,474
Charge for the period - 22 - 231 253
Disposals - - - (94) (84)
At 30 June 2019 2,316 280 1,380 4657 8,633
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 - - - 368 368

INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

9. EMPLOYEES (continued)

J Sawyer is also a director of Ingeus Europe Limited, and his remuneration was reflected in the
financial statements of that entity in 2019. No costs in respect of his services as a director of the
Group were recharged to Ingeus UK Limited, but if they had been, the total cost attributable for
2020 would be nil (2019: £122,000).

GH Meyerowitz received no remuneration from Ingeus UK Limited for his services to the Group
during the year (2019: nil). No costs in respect of GH Meyerowitz's services as director of Ingeus
UK Limited were recharged to the Group.

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Company

Cost

At 1 July 2019
Disposals

At 30 June 2020

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2019

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 30 June 2020

Net book value
At 30 June 2020

Cost

At 1 January 2019 and 30 June 2019

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2019

Charge for the year

At 30 June 2019

Net book value
At 30 June 2019

Computer software
licences
£000

3,025
(3.025)

2,997
18

(3.015)

Computer software
licences
£'000

3,025

2,977
20
2,997

28
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Office
Leasehold equipment Computer Motor
property and fittings equipment vehicles Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 July 2019 14,167 7,997 5,175 1,147 28,486
Additions 396 176 388 - 960
Disposals (2,687) {1,365) (2,761) (38) (6,851}
At 30 June 2020 11,876 6,808 2,802 1,109 22,595
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 July 2019 6,669 3,358 4,408 983 15,418
Charge for the year 3,554 1,779 440 79 5,852
Disposals (2,776} {1,380) (2,519 (20 (6,705)
At 30 June 2020 7,447 3,747 2329 1,042 14,565
Net hook value
At 30 June 2020 4,429 3,061 473 67 8,030
. Office : .
Leasehold equipment Computer Motor
property and fittings equipment vehicles Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2019 8,875 3948 4697 1,201 18,721
Adjustment on transition
to IFRS 16 6,224 4377 - - 10,601
At 1 January 2019;
restated 15,099 8,325 4,697 1,201 29,322
Additions 800 127 344 17 1,088
. Disposals: s.. e - < (926) (214) (1) {53) . (1,204)
Transfer of assets R - -(68) (241) 145 ~ (18) (182)
Impairment {538) - - - (538)
At 30 June 2019 L - 14167 7,997 5,175 1,147 28,486
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2019 5,154 3,083 3684 993 12,894
Charge for the period 2,438 1,057 138 33 3,667
Disposals (695) (214) (1) (41) (961)
Transfer of assets (228) (548) 596 {2} {182)
At 30 June 2019 6,669 3,358 4,408 983 15,418
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 7,498 4,638 767 164 13,068
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

GEUS UK LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

11.

Company

Cost

At 1 July 2019
Additions
Disposals
Reclass

At 30 June 2020

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 July 2019
Charge for the year
Disposals

Reclass

At 30 June 2020

Net book value
At 30 June 2020 -

Cost
At 1 January 2019

Adjustment on transition

to IFRS 16

At 1 January 2019:

restated

Additions

Disposals
Impairment -

~-At 30 Jurie 2019 7

Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 January 2019
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 30 June 2018

Net book value
At 30 June 2019

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Office
Leasehold equipment Computer
property and fittings equipment Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000
3,439 5,656 3171 12,266
397 - 332 729
(2,688) (1,365) (2,760) (6,813)
438 - - 438
1,586 4,291 743 6,620
2,403 1,884 2,550 6,837
858 1,132 272 2,262
(2,776) (1,390) (2,519) (6,685)
438 - - 438
923 1,626 303 2,852
663 2,665 440 3,768
Office
Leasehold equipment Computer
property and fittings equipment Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000
2,607 1,662 2,828 7,097
1,292 4,176 - 5,468
3,899 5,838 2,828 12,565
600 31 345 976
(522) (213) (2) (737)
L (538) . - i = (838 ¢
Tl 3439 - 5656 3,171 12,266 -
2,223 1,551 2,457 6,231
637 547 93 1277
(457) (214) - {671)
2,403 1,884 2,550 6,837
1,036 3,772 621 5,429
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Right-of-use assets:
Group

Included within property, plant and equipment are right-of-use assets, which consists of assets
arising from operating lease arrangements accounted for under IFRS 16:

Office
Leasehold equipment
property and fittings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 July 2019 8,076 4,377 10,453
Additions 397 - 397
Disposals (467) - (467}
At 30 June 2020 6,006 4,377 10,383
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 July 2019 1,225 561 1,786
Charge for the year 2,292 1,121 3,413
Disposals ; (467) - (467)
At 30 June 2020 ‘ 3,050 1,682 4,732
Net book value
At 30 June 2020 ‘ ‘ 2,956 2,695 5,651
Office
Leasehold equipment
property and fittings Total
£°000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2019 - - -
Opening balance adjustment o 6,224 4,377 10,601
At 1 January 2019: restated 6,224 4377 10,601
_ Additions B ‘ 390 - 3390 .
7 __‘_*-_4;___-'_-;'::;;'pispo§al§_“‘ L Tt T T (538) R (-1 ) B
B “~ ~At 30 June 2019° ST T ' 6,076 4,377 T 10453 0 TR ¢
Accumulated '
depreciation ;
At 1 January 2019 ' - - -
Charge for the year 1,225 561 1,786
Disposals - - -
At 30 June 2019 1,225 561 1,786
Net book value
At 30 June 2018 4,851 3,816 8,667

Interest expense on lease liabilities are detailed in note 7.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued):

Company:

Included within property, plant and eguipment are right-of-use ("RCU") assets, which consists of
assets arising from operating lease arrangements accounted for under IFRS 16:

Office
equipment
Leasehold and
property fittings Total
£000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 July 2019 1,144 4176 5,320
Additions 397 - 397
Disposals K {467) - (467)
At 30 June 2020 , 1,074 4,176 5,250
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 July 2019 522 456 a78
Charge for the year , 754 1,044 1,798
Disposals : . (467) - (467)
At 30 June 2020 , 809 1,500 2,308
Net book value
At 30 June 2020 o 265 2,676 2,941
Office
equipment
Leasehold and
property fittings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2013 as previously stated. - - -
.Opening balance adjustment , ' 1,292 4,176 5,468
At 1 January 2019: restated , 1,292 4,176 5,468
Additions 390 - - 380
Disposals . " Lo T .7 LR oo (538) L - - {538).
2 At 30 June 2019 - - ) ' 1,144 - 4,176 5,320
Accumulated .
* depreciation
At 1 January 2019 - - -
Charge for the year 522 456 978
. At 30 June 2018 522 456 978
Net book vatue
At 30 June 2019 622 3,720 4,342
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

12. DEFERRED TAXATION ASSET

The deferred taxation asset is made up as follows:

Group Company
30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Balance at beginning of the year/period - 1,374 - 1,374
Deferred tax charge (note 8) - (1,271) - (1,271)
Overprovision in prior year {note 8) - {2386) - (236)
Effect of changes in tax rate (note 8) - 133 - 133
Balance at 30 June - - - -

Unrecognised deferred tax Group Company
: 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets 2,748 2,363 1,328 1,103
Losses - 3,593 3,115 2,314 1,959
Short term timing differences - 83 57 83 57
Accrued liabilities . 1 228 - -
Intangibles 22 - - -
Other - 8 45 8 27
6,455 5,808 3,734 3,146

The deferred tax asset has not been recognised as it is not probable that future taxable profit

will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

13. OTHER RECEIVABLES ~ NON-CURRENT

Group Company
30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Accrued income 106 - - -
et .. Deposits . - iue R - 595 -- - 594
et R | T 106 595 - 594

2° o el e D L - The above includes cash deposits secured against property leases.
14. INVESTMENTS

Company

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£000 £'000

Cost and carrying amount of directly

owned investments

ITL Training Limited

Invisage Limited

The Reducing Reoffending Partnership Limited (RRP)
Ingeus Scotland Limited

Ability Insight Limited

Further details of the company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries are disclosed in note 28.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — CURRENT

Group Company
30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000
Trade receivables 1,570 3,329 1,298 3,050
Other receivables 825 348 787 1,124
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - - 900
Prepayments 14,852 10,683 13,525 9,428
Accrued income 6,319 12,938 1,571 6,764
23,566 27,298 17,181 21,266

As at 30 June 2020 amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, do not incur any interest
and are repayable on demand. For the Group, included in amounts owed by group undertakings is
-impairment recognised on receivables from the Group undertakings totalling £22,518,000 (2019:
£11,222,000). Trade receivables are stated after provisions for impairment of £127,000 (2019:

£173,000).

For the Company, included in the amounts owed by group undertakings is impairment recognised on

receivables of £23,044,000 (2019: £14,443,000). Trade receivables are stated after provisions for

impairment of £102,000 (2019: £152,000).

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

‘ Group Company
- : . 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
C 2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £:000 £'000
Cash 1,497 3,161 401 809
Cash equivalents - 285 - 285
1,497 3,446 401 1,094

" As at 30 June 2020 cash equivalents includes restricted cash of £nil {2019: £285,000) relating to
security held against the corporate credit card facility.

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - CURRENT

2019 7

Group Company
B Y . e 30 Jun .30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
SRR S 2020 2019 2020
L g £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Trade payables 2124 2774 1,215 1,828
Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,377 300 5,331 1,817
Other taxes and social security costs 8,117 3,653 5,416 734
Other payables 1,368 243 1,074 356
Accruals 9,311 13,077 3,214 5944
Deferred income 24 447 21,524 21,096 19,250
47,744 41,571 37,346 29,929

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, do not charge any interest and are repayable

on demand.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued})
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — NON-CURRENT

Group Company
30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Other payables - 816 - 129
Deferred income 3,063 2,727 - -
3,063 3,543 - 129

19. LEASE LIABILITY

30 .Jun 30 Jun
Group: 2020 2019
£000 £'000
Current o 3,194 3,312
Between one and five years 3,384 6,036
6,578 9,348
30 Jun 30 Jun
Company: 2020 2018
£000 £'000
Current 1,610 1,846
Between one and five years 2,045 3,110
3,655 4,956

Assets acquired under lease contracts are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.
Total cash cutflow for the Group is £3,692,000 (2019: £1,971,000). Total cash outflow for the
Company is £2,007,000 (2019: £1,087,000),

20. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT

TR R The Staffordshire and ‘West Midlands Community Rehabilitation Company Limited (“SWM") and
The Derbyshire Leicestershire Nottinghamshire and Rutland Community Rehabilitation Company

wtgmeasre aLimited (("DENR?) “participaté in. the Greater Manchester Local Government Pensions Fund

n

< esp Fra o ("EGPS”). The participation commenced on 1 June 2014 when the employees of the trust were
e transferred into SWM and DLNR (the “CRCs"} and the companies became admitted bodies. As
such the CRCs were granted a fully funded past service position at the date.

The CRCs’ contribution into these schemes is capped at 14%. Any deficits recorded in respect of
the LGPS is matched by a pension reimbursement asset obtained from the MoJ. This reflects
contractual position the CRCs have with the MoJ that ensures that shortfalls and any variation in
the contribution rates or crystallisation of scheme liabilities on exit are reimbursed. The CRCs do
have a potential obligation arising due to early retirement.

The following information is based cn upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund as at 30 June 2020
by a qualified independent actuary.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

20. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued)

Net pension liability

Defined benefit abligation
Plan assets

Movements in present value of defined
benefit obligation

At 1 July/ 1 January
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest expense
Actuarial gain/{loss)
Contributions by members
Benefits paid

As at 30 June

Movements in fair value of plan assets

At 1 July/ 1 January
Interest income on plan assets
Return on plan assets less interest
Restructuring contribution by employer
Early retirement contributions by employer
Contribution by employer .
Contribution by members
___ Benefits paid _
~'As at 30 June’

e TS

B N

LT e T R

g Reconciliation of opening and closing balance for -

reimbursement right recognised as an asset

At 1 July/1 January

Net interest expense

Re-measurement through other comprehensive
income

Re-measurement through profit and loss

As at 30 June

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£'000 £°000
(262,065) (254,248)
175,716 190,999
(86,349) (63,249)
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£7000 £7000
(254,248) (214,690)
(8,566) (2,927)
(59) (2,649)
(5,909) (3,080)
2,371 (31,659)
(1,028) (564)
3,374 1,321
(262,065) (254,248)
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£'000 £'000
190,999 174,285
4,436 2,479
(20,846) 13,408
251 354
881 24
2,341 1,208
1,028 564
(3,374) (1,321)
175,716 190,999
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£000 £7000
(63,249) (40,405)
(1,475) (601)
(19,259) (18,251)
(2,366) (3,992)
(86,349) (63.249)
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

20. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT {continued)

Expenselincome recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income

Contributions paid by the Group
Adjustment to current service cost
Adjustment to re-imbursement asset

Net interest on net defined benefit liability

Net interest on net re-imbursement asset
Total net recognised in Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Total actuarial loss is domprised of:

Changes in financial assumptions
Changes in demographic assumptions
Other experience >

Total actuarial loss

Actual return on plan assets

Six months
Year ended ended
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£000 £'000
(3,808) (1,584)
(2,366) (3,992)
2,366 3,892
(1,475) (601)
1,475 601
(3,808) (1,584)
Year Six month period
ended ended
30 Jun
2020 30 Jun 2019
£000 £000
(26,988) (31,659)
6,515 -
22,844 -
2,371 (31,659)
30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2019
£000 £000
(20,848) 13,408
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

20. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued)

The fair value of the plan assets and the return on those assets were as follows:

30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted  Unquoted Total
£'000 £°000 £’000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Equity Securities:
Consumer 13,650 - 13,650 10,550 - 10,550
Manufacturing 12,003 - 12,003 11,038 - 11,038
Energy and Wtilities 8,236 - 8,236 10,734 - 10,734
Financial Institutions - 16,350 - 16,350 15,115 - 15,115
Health and Care 9675 - 9,675 5,640 - 5,640
Information Technology 8,891 - 8,891 3,411 - 3,411
Other 2,449 - 2,449 2,093 - 2,093
Debt Securities: :
Corporate Bonds (investment
grade) 9,130 - 9,130 7,144 - 7,144
UK Government - - - 1,257 - 1,257
. Other e 4998 - 4,998 4,844 - 4,844
Private Equity: ‘
All - 10,131 10,131 - 8,944 8,944
Real Estate:
UK Property - 7,046 7,048 - 8072 9,072
Investment Funds and Unit
Trusts:
Equities 17,307 - 17,307 43,178 0 43,178
Lo 2Bonds. . . ETEr T o 249837 . 21,963 23758° - 0 23758
_ Infrastructure _ ' - 9,534 = 9,534 - 9157 9,157
T TOther R . m T 3,811 16,655 20,466 _3,722 16475 20,197
Derivatives:
Other - - - 97 0 g7
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
All 3,887 - 3,887 4770 0 4,770
132,350 43,366 175,716 147,351 43,648 190,999

43




INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

20. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) at the year/period end were as follows:

30 Jun 2020 30 Jun 2018

% %

Discount rate 1.5 2.3
Future salary increase 29 32
Pension increase rate 21 2.4

In valuing the liabilities of the pension fund as at 30 June 2020, mortality assumptions have been
made relating to longevity. The underlying pension liabilities at the Statement of Financial Position
date are based on standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future
improvements in longevity. These assumptions are based on the follows:

* Current pensioner aged 65; 20.5 years (male), 23.1 years (female)
¢ Future retiree upon reaching 65 22.0 years (male), 25.0 years (female)

As at the date of the most recent valuation, the duration of the Employer's funded liabilities is 26
years.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions

is:
Approximate % increase Approximate monetary
: to Defined Benefit amount
st Obligation
As at As at As at As at
30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % £000 £000
Change in assumption
0.5% decrease Real Discount
Rate , 11% 12% 30,318 30,120
0.5% increase in the Salary
Increase Rate . 1% 3% 3,670 9,058
. ] 0.5% increase in the Pension ) ) e
A © ¥ IncreaseRate (CPl) -~ - 10% : 8% 26,017 20,180 7

7 -: 5. 22 The principal demographic assumption is the longevity assumption {member life expectancy) The
- estimated ‘sensitivity “for-thisis a one-year increase in life expectancy would mcrease thef.,_,
"Employer’'s Defined Benefit Obligation by around 3-5% (2019: 3-5%). '

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit
liability recognised in the balance sheet, based on the profile {average member ages, retirement
ages efc) of the employer as at the date of the most recent triennial valuation.




INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

20. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued)

Post retirement costs and contributions in the year

The Group operates a number of defined contribution schemes which receive fixed contributions
from group companies. The group’s legal or constructive obligation for these schemes is limited to
the contributions. The expense recognised in the current period in relation to these contributions
was £813,000 {2019: £458,000}.

The amounts payable to the LGPS as at 30 June 2020, included within other payables, was
£291,000 (2019: £305,000).

Included in the employees provisions (note 9) is a pensions provision of £58,000 (2019: £145,000)
in relation to the employee restructuring program. During the year, £163,000 (2019: £378,000) was
charged to the statement of comprehensive income and a contribution of £251,000 {(2019:
£354,000) was paid by the Group to the LGPS, These costs are not reimbursable by the MaoJ.
Included in the accruals and deferred income balance (note 17) is a provision of £238,000 (2019
£675,000) in relation to ill-health retirement benefits. As per the contract terms with the MoJ, Group

- employees can claim for ill health retirement under the rules of the LGPS. Each individual's claim
is first screened by the Group, and then medically assessed by the LGPS. Where ill health
retirement is granted, the individual's pension will be enhanced, the scale of the enhancement being
dependent on the extent of the deterioration in the individual's health.

Under the LGPS rules, the Group is required to meet the capital cost of enhancing each individual's
pension due to ill health. The Group’s liability to ill health claims would cease at the point the
contract ends.

During the year, £29,000 was charged (2019: £109,000 was charged) to the statement of
comprehensive income in relation to the ill-health costs. The amount paid during the year was
£881,000 (2019: £24,000).

21. PROVISIONS

Group
Onerous
Lease Other contract Employee Total .
dilapidations provision provision provisions provision
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
. Balance at 1 July 2019 2,550 207 1,547 1,091 5,395 ’
% Provisions made inthe year »-:. - 15 - - T57 882 - 819~ T 2199 70
Unwind of discount 86 - - - 86~
Provisions used in the year _ (468) (137) - {1,246) - .(1,648) (3,500) ..,
Provisions released in the ' 7 ' . L T
Loyear - ~(38) e - (94) -
Balance at 30 June 2020 2,283 637 869 261 4,050
At 30 June 2020
Current provisions 200 302 763 261 1,526
Non-current provisions 2,083 335 106 - 2,524
2,283 637 869 261 4,050
At 30 June 2019
Current provisions 691 202 594 1,084 2,571
Non-current provisions 1,859 5 953 7 2,824
2,550 207 1,547 1,091 5,395

45




Company
Onerous
Lease Other contract Employee Total
dilapidations provision provision provisions provision
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 July 2019 702 207 1,453 809 3,271
Provisions made in the year 153 - 662 203 1,018
Unwind of discount 18 - - - 19
Provisions used in the year (368) (137) (1,246) (909) {2,660)
Provisions released in the
year . - - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2020 506 70 869 203 1648 - -
At 30 June 2020 , _ - B
Current provisions ) 200 ¢ 56 763 203 1,222
Non-current provisions 306 14 106 0 426
~ 506 70 869 203 1,648
At 30 June 2019 ’
Current provisions 554 202 499 901 2,156
_Non-current provisions 148 5 954 8 1,115
L ) o 702 - 207 1,453 909 3.271
Lease dllapldatlons
. This provision represents the estimated lease dilapidation costs on the Group’s operating lease
tenancies. When a property is exited, the provision is used to defray any dilapidation settlements. The
non-current provisions wilt be utilised between 1-2 years.
Other provision
This provision relates to the future property costs {excluding rental payments) where the Group has
vacated a property and has no further commercial use for the property. The non-current provisions
will be utilised between 1-2 years.
Onerous contract provision - o
wx;m—iww +¥==This provision relates to-contracts which the Group operates, which were forecasted to be Ioss maklng TS EALTIREST
over the contract year. The non-current provisions will be utilised between 1-2 years.
- Employee provisions )

INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

21. PROVISIONS (continued)

::zr“;:-a 7"'“Thls ~provision- relates.-to- tlhe prowsnon for announced redundancy costs and the Iong -term -

P

-~ - management incentive scheme.” Costs incurred when employees leave the Group or when incentives
are paid out are offset against the amount provided. The non-current provisions will be utilised
between 1-2 years.

22. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary Number of

Shares
30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019
On issue at 30 June valued at £1 per share 4 4

There are no restrictions on dividends or repayments of capital.
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong credit
ratings and capital ratios. This will ensure that the business is correctly supported and shareholder
value is maximised.

The Group and Company manage their capital structure through adjustments that are dependent
on economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group or
Company may choose to issue new share capital to shareholders. There were no changes to the
objectives or policies during the year ended 30 June 2020 and period ended 30 June 2019.

(a) Pension assets and liabilities

Note 20 contains details of the pension assets and liabilities due to the defined benefit pension
scheme.

{b) Fair values of financial instruments

Trade and other receivables/payables
For current trade and other receivables and with a remaining useful life of less than one year, the
amortised cost is deemed to reflect fair value.

Interest-bearing borrowings
Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest as at the date of the Statement of Financial Position.

The fair values of all financial assets and financial liabilities by class together with their fair carrying
- . .-amounts shown in the Statement of Financial Position are as foliows: ; -

Group Carrying amount Fair value ' -
30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun e
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial assets
Cash and cash o
equivalents 1,497 3,446 1,497 a6 0

Receivables 8,820 17,210 8,820 17,210

10,317 20,656 10,317 20,656

Financial liabilities
Trade and other

.~ Ter.i payables . . . ..v23297 - . 20,863 23297 . 20863 .- .
it .leaseliability:™~ - - . . 6578 . .- 9348 -.-.. .. 6578 - . ... 9348 ‘-
' o 29875 30,211 29875 - 30,211
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)

{b) Fair values of financial instruments {continued)

Company Carrying amount Fair value
30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 401 1,094 401 1,084
Receivables 3,656 12,432 3,656 12,432
4,057 13,526 4,057 13,526
Financial liabilities
Trade and other
payables . 16,250 10,808 16,250 10,808
Lease Liability 3,655 4 956 3,655 4,956
o : 19,905 15,764 19,905 15,764

(c}) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group or Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Group'’s

or Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities.

-Internal risk control assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors set by the Board.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. Therefore, the
maximum exposure to credit risk at the Statement of Financial Position date was £10,317,000
(2019: £20,656,000) being the total of the carrying amount of financial assets, excluding

prepayments, shown in the table above.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the Statement of Financial Position

date was £1,697,000 (2019: £3,502,000).

Credit quality of financial assets and impairment fosses ‘

The aging of trade receivables at the Statement of Financial Position date was:

Group ) )
e : « - .- -@Gross Impairment’ Gross - ‘Impairment
30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2020 2019 2019
£7000 £000 £000 £'000
Financial assets
Not past due 1,334 - 1,881 51
Past due 0 - 30 days 61 ) - 1,371 -
Past due 31 -120
days 89 4 130 20
Past 120 days 213 123 120 102
1,697 127 3,502 173
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued})
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
{c) Credit risk (continued)

There was an impairment provision of trade receivables of £127,000 (2019: £173,000) at the year
end. Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired. As
of 30 June 2020, trade receivables of £236,000 (2019 £nil) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to government contracts for which there is no history of default.

The allowance account for trade receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Group
is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the amounts considered
irrecoverable are written off against the trade receivables directly.

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Group or Company's income cr the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The market for services to governments is competitive and subject to
-.. - == change and pricing pressure, particularly during the bidding for new contracts and contract
= e renewals. However, due to the critical nature of our offerings, market entry can be difficult for new
entrants or those without prior established track-records. Other barriers to entry include
operational service complexity and significant upfront investments. This can include
establishment of complex IT systems, significant menitoring and reporting obligations, delivery

from sites across wide geographies, and management and development of supply chains,

There has been no change in the Group’s or Company’s exposures to market risks as compared
to prior years.

{e} Interest rate risk

The Group and Company do not account for any fixed rates financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through Statement of Comprehensive Income. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit through a revaluation.

({f} Foreign currency risk

The Group and Company trade mainly in sterling and therefore has no significant currency risk.
{g) Liquidity risk

i mmT em 2 #2Liquidity. Fisk-is the'risk that:the Group and the Company will not be able to meet their financial
obligations as they fall due. '

U7 = ees wn 0The following are-the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest

R payments and excluding the effect of netting agreements:

Group Year ended 30 June 2020
Carrying Contractual 1 year 1to <2 2to<5
amount cash flows or less years years
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables 23,297 23,297 23,297 - -
Lease liability 6,578 6,578 3,194 2,612 772

29,875 29,875 26,491 2,612 772
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(g) Liquidity risk {continued)

Six months ended 30 June 2019

Carrying Contractual 1 year 1to <2 2to <5
amount cash flows or less years years
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables 20,863 20,863 20,572 2, -
Lease liability 9,348 10,230 3,550 3,322 3,358
30,211 31,093 24,122 3,613 3,358
Company Year ended 30 June 2020
Carrying Contractual 1 year 1to <2 2to <5
- amount cash flows or less years years
. £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables 16,250 16,250 16,250 - -
Lease Liability 3,655 4,167 2,122 1,388 6857
19,905 20,417 18,372 1,388 657
. Six months ended 30 June 2019
PR S ‘ ™ Carrying Contractual 1 year 1to<2 2to<5
amount cash flows orless years years
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables 10,808 10,808 10,679 129 -
Lease Liability 4,956 5,468 1,864 1,616 1,988
15,764 16,276 12,543 1,745 1,988
{h} Capital management
Do T TR -For-the-purposes of the Group's capital manage'mént, capital includes issued capital ang all'other

equity reserve attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary object of the Group’s
- Lfree-s . .. = -.Capital management is to.maximise the shareholder value and ensure the Group continues as a_
SRR AT TR e 5 ogoing concern. Management also aims to maintain a capital structure that ensure the lower cost of
Teeesc s oo - capital to the Group. -Thé Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments considering
changes in economic conditions.

The directors reviewed the capital structure post year and the company issued additional ordinary
shares (see note 27).
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group
Transaction value for the Balance outstanding
year ended as at
30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Management charges
ingeus Europe Limited (1,121} 484 (1,329) 8,482
Serendipity (WA) Pty Limited (692) 210 (870) {210)
APM Group (UK} Limited (88) - (88) -
Transactions on behalf of
related party
Ingeus Europe Limited ' 4,203 3,462 8,974 2,730
APM Group (UK) Limited 179 10 189 10
L.oans
Ingeus Europe Limited -
receivable 412 - 412 -
Ingeus Europe Limited — payable - - {90) (90)
APM Group (UK} Limited 12,943 - 12,943 -
Impairment provision : (11,296) (11,222) (22,518) (11,222)
{2,377) {300)
Summary
Amounts owed by group undertakings {net of impairment)
(note 15) - -
Amounts owed to group undertakings — current (note 17) (2,377} {300)
Net balance owed to group undertakings {2,377) {300)
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

S

Company

Management charges

Ingeus Europe Limited

Serendipity (WA) Pty Limited -

The Staffordshire and West Midlands
Community Rehabilitation Company
Limited

The Derbyshire, Leicestershire,
Nottinghamshire and Rutland Community
Rehabilitation Company Limited

Transactions on behalf of related party
ITL Training Limited

Ingeus Europe Limited

The Reducing Reoffending Partnershlp
Limited

The Staffordshire and West Mldtands
Community Rehabilitation Company
Limited !

The Derbyshire, Lelcestershlre,
Nottinghamshire and Rutland Community
Rehabilitation Company Limited
Advanced Personnel Management Group
(UK} Limited

Invisage Limited |

Loans

ingeus Europe Limited

The Staffordshire and West Mldlands
Community Rehabllltatlon Company

+oLimitéd- - - L s R
- The Derbyshire, Lelcestershlre

Nottinghamshire and Rutland Community

Rehabilitation Company Limited .-

The Reducing Reoffendmg Partnershlp
Limited

Advanced Personnel Management Group
(UK} Limited

Impairment provision

Summary

T8

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transaction value

for the
year ended
30 Jun
2020
£'000

(578)
(171)
(144)
(4,942)
(4,319)
(970)
(1,789)
(1,194)
179

1,544

3,926

(2,592)
961
10,550

(8,601)

30 Jun
2019
£'000

2,582
177

(171)
(144)
(22)
3,994
(659)
698
656
10

155

7,104

(3,150) ..

(900)

650

(6.511)

Amounts owed by group undertakings (net of impairment) {note 15)
Amounts owed to group undertakings — current (note 17)

Net balance owed to group undertakings

Balance outstanding

as at
30 Jun 30 Jun
2020 2019
£000 £000
(755) (177)
- 171
- 144
(1,536) 3,399
412 4,731
3127 4097
550 2339
452 1,646
189 10
1,566 22
3,926 -
©(431) - (4150) - -
(3.492) (900)
3,155 2,194
10,550 -

(23,044) {14,443)

(5,331) (917)

- 900
(5,331) (1,817)
(5,331) (917)
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

All amounts owed to Ingeus Europe Limited, The Derbyshire, Leicestershire, Nottinghamshire and
Rutland Community Rehabilitation Company Limited and The Staffordshire and West Midlands
Community Rehabilitation Company Limited are unsecured, do not incur interest charges and are
repayable on demand.

The Group's key management personnel are the Group's directors. Transactions with key
management personnel (who are the directors) are disclosed in Note 9.

25. SECURITY GRANTED OVER CERTAIN MATERIAL ASSETS
The Company and the Group have granted security over certain material assets and granted a
qualifying floating charge over all or substantially all of its assets as security over the debts of the
ultimate Parent Company to the security beneficiaries set out in the ultimate Parent Company's
facility agreement.

26. RESERVES

Group
Non-
Capital Controlling
Share Contribution Interest
Premium Reserve Reserve Total
£°000 £000 £000 £000
- Balance at 1 July 2019 ‘ ' 5,000 114 - 5114
Acquisition of minority
interest in a controfled entity | - - (1,379) (1,379)
Balance at 30 June 2020 5,000 114 {1,379) 3,735
Non-
Capital Controlling
Share Contribution Interest
Premium Reserve Reserve Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 2019 5,000 114 - 5114
Acquisition of minority . .
e interest in a controlled entity - - - - . -~ - ) - B e
- __ Balance at 30 June 20197 -~ - 5,000 ' 114 ' , - 5,114 ' S e
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

26. RESERVES (continued)

Company
Capital
Share Contribution
Premium Reserve Total
£000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 July 2019 5,000 114 5114
Balance at 30 June 2020 5,000 114 5,114
Capital
Share Contribution
Premium Reserve Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January 2019 5,000 114 5,114
Balance at 30 June 2019 5,000 114 5114

Share Premium

‘Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

Capital Contribution Reserve

This relates to share-based payments recognised as an equity reserve pursuant to a stock option

s
3

Non-Controlling Interest Reserve

o < -»~ .-~ and restricted stock unit scheme operated by the previous owners of Ingeus UK Limited.

This records the financial impact of acquiring the non-cantrolling interests in a controlled entlty

27. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 1 March 2021, the Company issued 5,691,129 ordinary shares of £1 each in settiement of
debts totalling £5,691,129 owing to its immediate parent entity Ingeus Europe Limited.

In addition, on 1 March 2021, Ingeus Europe Limited subscribed for 29,000,000 ordlnary shares

Wi adesgEs - - of £1 each inthe Company for a total of £29,000,000.
On the assumption that the above transactions had occurred on 30 June 2020, the impact or'1-th-e
v e . o -% oz (Group's and the Company's Statement of Financial Position would have been as follows:
Toom WEED Umgmr il mee s TS T L0l 30 June 2020 Subsequent event Proforma balance .
balance
£'000 £'000 £'000
Consolidated
Net assets/ (net liabilities) (28,098) 34,691 6,593
Shareholders’ equity/(deficit) (28,098) 34,691 6,593
Company
Net assets/ (net liahilities) (21,299) 34,691 13,392
Shareholders’ equity/{deficit) (21,299) 34,69 13,392
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INGEUS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

27. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE (continued)
From a Group and Company perspective the net liabilities would have reduced from £28,098,000
and £21,299,000 respectively to a net asset position of £6,593,000 and £13,392,000
respectively.
In addition, subsequent to year end, the Group acquired 100% of CNLR Horizons Limited for
£1,427,000 and its provisionally determined fair values result in intangibles of £1,431,000. It’s
principal activity is to provide employee assistants programmes.

28. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The Company’s subsidiaries, including subsidiaries held by indirect holding companies are:

% ordinary share capital

Name Country ownership

30 Jun 30 Jun

2020 2019

Invisage Limited ! : UK 100% 100%
Ingeus Scotland Limited* 2 UK 100% 100%
ITL Training Limited 1 ' UK 100% 100%
The Reducing Reoffending Partnership Limited UK 100% 90%
The Derbyshire Leicestershire Nottinghamshire and Rutland
Community Rehabilitation Company Limited 34 UK 100% 90%
The Staffordshire and West Midlands Communlty Rehabilitation o R
Company Limited 34 UK 100% 90%
Ability Insight Limited* 2 UK 100% 0%

* Dormant company
' TRegistered address — 18 Mansell Street, London, E1 8AA
" 2Registered address — 13 Queen's Road, Aberdeen, Scotiand
3 Registered address — Ground Floor Centre City, 5-7 Hill Street, Birmingham, BS 4UA
4 This company is a subsidiary of The Reducing Reoffending Partnership Limited.

29. ULTIMATE AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate-Parent Company of Ingeus UK Limited is Ingeus Europe Limited (registered office

e ’-Flf‘th Floor, 18 Mansell- Street, Londen, E1 8AA, UK). The ultimate Parent Company is APM Human

.= r<Service§ International Pty Ltd and is the ultimate Parent Company and contrelling party at balance
date. The former ultimate Parent Company, International APM Group Pty Ltd heads the largest and
smallest group to consolidate these financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the former ultimate Parent Company can be obtained
from the Australian Securities and Investments Commission via GPO Box 9827, Melbourne,
Victoria 3001, Australia or via their website at http://www.asic.gov.au/asic/asic.nsf.
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